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Board of Mayor and Aldermen
Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee

Dear Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen:

We are submitting the basic financial statements with required and other supplementary information for the
fiscal year ended June 30,2012. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Town’s management. We believe the
data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects, is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the
financial position and results of operation of the Town as measured by the financial activity of its various funds,
and includes all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain maximum understanding of the Town’s
financial activities.

Brown Jake & McDaniel, PC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, have audited the Town’s basic
financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the basic
financial statements of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the basic financial statement; assessing the accounting principals used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that
the Town’s basic financial statements for the year ended June 30,2012, are fairly presented in conformitywith
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The independent auditor~s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GPAP) requires that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The Town’s MD&A can be found as the second component of the financial section of this
report.

The basic financial statements with required and other supplementary information is presented in three
sections: 1) the introductory section, which contains the transmittal letter and a listing of principal officials;
2) the financial section, which consists of the independent auditor’s report, management’s discussion and
analysis, the basic financial statements, the fund financial statements, required supplementary information and
other supplementary information; and 3) the internal control and compliance section, which contains reporting
issued by the auditor.

This report includes all funds required of the Town. The Town provides a full range of services including
Police and Fire Protection, Highways and Streets, Sanitation and Solid Waste, Recreational Activities, Water,
Sewer and General Administrative Services.

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to insure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to insure that
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adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

The Town is responsible for insuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to insure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to the operations of the Town. This internal control
structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management.

In addition, the Town maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to insure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved bythe Board of Mayor
and Aldermen. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Fund are included
in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures
cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the fund level.

The State requires an annual audit of our basic financial statements by an independent certified public
accountant. Accordingly, this year’s audit was completed by Brown Jake & McDaniel, PC. In addition to
meeting the State requirements, the audit was also designed to meet Federal audit requirements.

Respectfully submitted,

TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS

Ramona Walker
City Finance Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Mayor and Board of Aldermen
Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Oliver Springs,
Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30,2012, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of
Oliver Springs, Tennessee’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the
aggregate remaining fund information and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund of the
Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee at June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 25, 2013
on our consideration of the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 through 15 and the required supplementary information on page 57 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the

DDD



information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section
and other supplementary information within the financial section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements of the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee.
The other supplementary information, including the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The other supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal and
state awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory section and other
statistical schedules in the foregoing table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.

PC
February 25, 2013
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee’s (the Town) financial performance
provides an overview of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The intent
of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Town’s financial performance as a whole; readers should
also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance their
understanding of the Town’s financial performance.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for 2012 are as follows:

Governmental-Type Activities

The net assets of the Town increased by $119,710. This increase was mainly due to a decrease in
General Fund expenditures from the prior year.

General revenues accounted for $1,592,131 or 75.4 percent of total revenue. Program specific revenues
in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions accounted for $518,446 or 24.6 percent of total revenues of $2,110,577.

Among major funds, the General Fund had $1,794,454 in revenues and $1,761,829 in expenses and
transfers. The fund balance for the General Fund increased by $32,625 from 2011.

Business-Type Activities

The Water and Sewer Fund’s net utility plant decreased by $316,568 or 4.4 percent.

The Water and Sewer Fund’s net assets decreased by $48,828 or 0.7 percent.

During the year, the Water and Sewer Fund’s operating revenues increased by $19,885 or 1.6 percent.

During the year, the Water and Sewer Fund’s total expense decreased by $10,728 or 0.8 percent.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand the Town as a financial whole. The statements
then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
Town, presenting both an aggregate view of the Town’s finances and a longer-term view of those
finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental activities, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.
The fund financial statements also look at the Town’s most significant funds with all other nonmajor funds
presented in one column. In the case of the Town, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.
The Town’s business-type activities consist of utility distribution services for water and wastewater
treatment provided by the Water and Sewer Fund.

The other required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this
statement is to provide information about the Town’s business-type activities, cash receipts and cash
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payments during the reporting period. This statement reports cash receipts, cash payments and net
changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and financing activities; and provides answers to
such questions as “where did cash come from?”, “what was cash used for?” and “what was the change in
cash balance during the reporting period?”

REPORTING THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the funds used by the Town to provide programs and activities, the view of
the Town as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, “how did we do financially
during 2012?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities answer this question.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar
to the accounting used by most private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into account all
of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Town’s net assets and changes in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the Town as a whole, the financial position of the
Town has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some
financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the Town’s tax base, facility condition, required
educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the Town reports governmental
activities and business-type activities. Governmental activities are the activities where most of the Town’s
programs and services are reported, including, but not limited to, general services, public safety,
highways and streets, and recreation. The Town of Oliver Springs has one business-type activity, the
Water and Sewer Fund. It provides water and wastewater services to the Town and adjacent areas of
Roane, Anderson and Morgan Counties.

REPORTING THE TOWN’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the Town’s major funds. The Town uses several
funds to account for a range of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on
the Town’s most significant funds. The Town’s major governmental fund is the General Fund.

Governmental Funds

All of the Town’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and
out of those funds and the balances left at year end that are available for spending in future periods.
These funds are reported using the modified accrual method of accounting, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the Town’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance Town general services. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.



a

THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

The Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the Town as a whole. Table 1 provides a
summary of the Town of Oliver Springs’ net assets for 2012 and 2011.

Table 1
Net Assets

Go’ernmental-Type Business-Type
ActMties ActMties

ASS ETS
2012 2011 2012 2011

Current and other assets $ 1004,299 $ 937,505 $ 756,911 $ 667,085
Capital assets 1,871,535 1,836,824 6,814,141 7,130,709

Total assets $ 2,875,834 $ 2774,329 $ 7,571,052 $ 7,797,794

LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities $ 299,281 $ 326,046 $ 880,165 $ 1,056,172
Other liabilities 469,081 460,521 188,250 190,157

Total liabilities $ 768,362 $ 786,567 $ 1068,415 $ 1,246,329

NET ASSETS

ln~ested in capital assets, net of
related debt $ 1,611,535 $ 1,546,824 $5,933,976 $6,074,537

Restricted 107,457 78,469 35,000 35,000
Unrestricted 388,480 362,469 533,661 441,928

Total net assets $2,107,472 $ 1,987,762 $6,502,637 $ 6,551,465
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Table 2 provides a summary of the Town of Oliver Springs’ changes in net assets for 2012 and 2011.

Table 2
Changes in NetAssets

Go~ernmental-Type Business-Type
ActMties ActNities

2012 2011 2012 2011
Re~enue:

Program re~enue: -

Charges for seMces $ 251,029 $ 272,938 $ 1,295,257 $1,275,372
Operating grants and

contributions 179,562 502,854 - -

Capital grants and
contributions 87,855 99,692 - 71,167

General re~nue:
Taxes:

Sales taxes 801,613 754,650 - -

Property taxes 399,503 408,360 - -

In-lieu of tax 99,891 95,379 - -

Wholesale beer tax 147,015 141,163 - -

Income tax 7,091 6,942 - -

Gas taxes 6,631 7,051 - -

Other taxes 78,641 85,210 - -

Interest earned 1,376 2,773 314 19
Miscellaneous 50,370 30,667 - -

Total re’~enue 2,110,577 2,407,679 1,295,571 1,346,558

Program expenses:
General government 689,683 694,548 - -

Public safety 710,133 727,936 - -

Drug enforcement 28,169 25,544 - -

Highways and streets 185,086 222,502 - -

State street aid 75,666 224,734 - -

Sanitation 128,595 123,661 - -

Culture and recreation 70,245 74,251 - -

Health, weI~re and social ser~ces 41,359 36,211 - -

Community daelopment 61,931 401,336
Utilities - - 1,344,399 1,355,127
Interest and fiscal charges 495

Total program expenses 1,990,867 2,531,218 1,344,399 1,355,127

Increase (decrease) in net assets 119,710 (123,539) (48,828) (8,569)

Net assets, beginning 1,987,762 2,111,301 6,551,465 6,560,034

Net assets, ending $2,107,472 $ 1,987,762 $6,502,637 $6,551,465
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Governmental-Type Activities

Governmental-Type
ActMties

2012 2011
Re~enues:

Sales taxes 38% 31%
Property taxes 19% 17%
Charges for services 12% 11%
Wholesale beer tax 7% 6W
Operating grants and contributions 8% 21%
Other 16% 14%

100% 100%
Expenses:

General go~rnment 35% 27%
Public safety 36% 29%
Highways and streets 9% 9%
Other 20% 35%

100% 100%

Business-Type Activities

Business-Type
Activities

2012 2011
Revenues:
Charges for utility services 99% 94%
Capital grants and contributions 0% 5%
Other 1% 1%

100% 100%
Expenses:
Utilityservices 100% 100%

Expenses related to providing water and sewer service to customers comprise 100 percent of the Town’s
business-type activity expenses.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost (benefit) of providing
services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted State
entitlements.
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General government includes activities of the judicial, legislative and executive branches of the Town,
as well as financial administration, legal, industrial development, municipal building operations and
maintenance, and any other activity not specifically included in a separate program.

Public safety includes activities of the police, fire and codes enforcement.

Drug enforcement includes specific police activity related to the eradication of illegal drug use,
production and distribution.

Highways and streets include activities related to the operation and maintenance of roads, streets,
sidewalks, alleys, and all related activities.

State street aid includes the administration of gas taxes restricted for the maintenance of Town roads,
sidewalks, etc.

Sanitation includes all the activities of solid waste collection and removal for the Town.

Culture and recreation includes all the activities of the parks, community centers and libraries.

Health, welfare and social services include the activities of rabies and animal control.

Community development includes the activities of the HOMES Grant.

Cemeteries include the cost of perpetual maintenance of cemetery.

Interest and fiscal charges is the activity associated with the payment of the Town’s debt.

The dependence upon tax revenue is apparent. All activities supported through taxes and other general
revenues amounted to 74 and 65 percent for the fiscal years ended 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
community as a whole is the primary support for the Town.

Table 3

General go~.emment
Public safety
Drug enforcement
Highways and streets
State street aid
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Health, welfare and social services
Community de~elopment
Cemeteries
Interest and fiscal charges

Net Cost
(Benefit) of

Ser~4ces 2012

$ 613,997
579,028
(13,743)
181,564

(8,096)
8,187

70,125
41,359

Total Cost of
SenAces 2012

$ 689,683
710,133
28,169

185,086
75,666

128,595
70,245
41,359
61,931

Total Cost of
Seft4ces 2011

$ 694,548
727,936

25,544
222,502
224,734
123,661
74,251
36,211

401,336

495

Net Cost
(Benefit) of

Ser~4ces 2011

$ 691,823
555,362
(33,622)
196,661
135,183
35,259
38,234
36,211

128

___________ 495

1,655,734$ 1,990,867 $ 1,472,421 $ 2,531,218 $
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CHANGES IN NET ASSETS — BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Changes in the Water and Sewer Fund’s net assets can be determined by reviewing the following
condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for the year 2012 and
2011.

Table 4
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Business-Type ActNities

2012 2011

Revenues:
Operating revenues $ 1,295,257 $ 1,275,372
Non-operating re~enues 314 19

Total re~enues 1,295,571 1,275,391

Expenses:
Operation 643,604 670,308
Administrat[~e and general expense 263,986 261,825
Maintenance expense 72,187 53,674
Depreciation and amortization expense 326,712 323,170
Interest 37,910 46,150

Total expenses 1,344,399 1,356,127

Income (loss) before capital contributions (48,828) (79,736)

Capital contributions - 71,167

Change in net assets (48,828) (8,569)

Net assets, beginning 6,551,465 6,560,034

Net assets, ending $ 6,502,637 $ 6,551,465

The Water and Sewer Fund operating revenues were up 1.6 percent, which is comparable to the prior
year. The number of water customers decreased 1.5 percent (33) and sewer customers decreased 1.1
percent (15) during fiscal year 2012.

Total expenses were down 0.8 percent this year, which is comparable to the prior year.
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THE TOWN’S FUNDS

Information about the Town’s major funds is detailed in the financial statements. These funds are
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds had total revenues
of $2,040,577 and expenditures of $1,982,343 for the fiscal year 2012.

As the Town completed the current year, all governmental funds had a balance of $535,218, an increase
of $58,234 over 2011. This increase was mainly due to a decrease in general fund expenses.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Town’s budget is prepared according to Tennessee law and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The General Fund is the
most significant budgeted fund.

The Town amended its budget several times in the 2012 fiscal year. The most significant amendments
were due to special impact revenues and capital outlay.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets — Governmental-Type Activities

At the end of fiscal year 2012, the Town had $1,871,535 invested in land, buildings and improvements,
machinery and equipment, and vehicles. Table 5 shows fiscal 2012 and 2011 balances.

Table 5
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30

Go~mmental-Type Actitities

2012 2011

Land $ 207,000 $ 192,000
Buildings and impro~ements 725,905 652,159
Machinery and equipment 210,173 222,284
Vehicles 274,287 309,190
Street network 454,170 461,191

$ 1,871,535 $ 1,836,824

Overall capital assets increased by $34,711 in fiscal year 2012; and, depreciation expenses for this year
amounted to $109,735. The Town’s major additions were for the remodel of the new City Hall building,
Tuppertown Community Center building, radio equipment and office equipment. At the fiscal year end,
the Town had no outstanding commitments for capital expenditures.
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Capital Assets — Business-Type Activities

At the end of fiscal year 2012, the Water and Sewer Fund had $6,814,141 invested in a broad range of
capital assets, including its water distribution line, water treatment plant, sewer collection lines and sewer
treatment plant. This amount represents a net decrease of $316,568 or 4.4 percent.

Table 6 shows fiscal year 2012 and 2011 balances

Table 6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30

(Dollars in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities

2012 2011
Net Utility Plant:

Land $ 43,545 $ 43,545
Water and sewer plant 6,770,596 7,087,164

$ 6,814,141 $ 7,130,709

The only addition was a new pump for a water booster station.

Debt Administration — Governmental-Type Activities

The Town’s debt includes a revenue and tax bond and a capital outlay note. The Town charter does not
limit the amount of debt that can be issued.

At June 30, 2012, the Town had a long-term debt totaling $260,000, with $30,000 due within one year.
No interest on this note is due.

Debt Administration - Business-Type Activities

At June 30, 2012, the Water and Sewer Fund had outstanding revenue and tax bonds, a State Revolving
Loan and a CDBG Loan in the amount of $880,165, with $182,840 due within one year. Debt service
schedules amortize through 2042. Interest rates range from 3.3 percent to 5.0 percent on the loans and
bonds. All outstanding bonds are insured and rated AAA,

CURRENT FINANCIAL ISSUES AND CONCERNS

Governmental-Type Activities

As is evident across the country, the economic recovery continues to progress at a slow pace. As such,
the Town of Oliver Springs will operate accordingly, being very sensitive to minimal revenue growth, We
project our budget to once again focus on the necessities with very little increase in non-essential
spending. While we consider our budget to be very trim, we will continue to look for areas in which
spending can be reduced, to help offset any new expenditures. At a time when unemployment rates
remain high, and people are struggling to stay in their homes, we remain committed to operating
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government without increasing the burden on our taxpayers. With all of this said, all is not bad. In the
past year, we have seen new businesses open, and existing businesses increase their investment in our
community. In addition, we are looking at tax rate increases for the next budget year in order to
accommodate our growing costs while still providing the quality of services needed for our citizens. We
will continue to strive to improve our fund balance and meet the minimum requirements for operating fund
reserves. We realize that times are difficult, but while we remain conservative, we also have an eye on
the future, and stand ready to move forward as times improve.

Business-Type Activities

We continue to strive to improve our Water and Sewer services throughout the Town of Oliver Springs,
including implementation of new water loss controls, working on inflow and infiltration and sewer quality
controls. Due to this fact we are looking at water and sewer rate increases to allow us the ability to
maintain state standards in operation, providing quality services to our citizens and maintenance of
facilities to insure the integrity of our services for the future. With this we will continue to strive to improve
our fund balance and meet the minimum requirements for operating fund reserves.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Town of Oliver Springs’ finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Town of
Oliver Springs, 717 Main Street, Oliver Springs, Tennessee 37840.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Net Assets

June 30,2012

ASSETS

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:

Property taxes (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $48733)

Utility customers (net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $195,441)

Unbilled property taxes
Due from other governmental units
Interest
Other

Internal balances
Due from customers
Prepaid expenses

31,921

405,000
53,344

134,838
3,062

20,465
36,169

895,618

$ 553,765
176,683

31,921

116,522 116,522
- 405,000
- 53,344

227
140,460

3,062
20,465
45.054

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from other governmental units

Total restricted assets 108,681 106,026 214,707

Capital assets:
Land
Depreciable capital assets

207,000
2,649,235

2,856,235

43,545
13,266,983

13,310,528

250,545
15,916,218

16,166,763

Less: Accumulated depreciation 984,700 6,496,387 7,481,087

Total capital assets

Total assets

1,871,535

$ 2,875,834

6,814,141

$ 7,571,052

8,685,676

$ 10,446,886

$ 160,819 $ 392,946
50,000 126,683

Total current assets

227
5,622

8,885

650,885 1,546,503

93,810 47,309
- 58,717

14,871 14,871

141,119
58,717

(Continued)
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Net Assets
(Continued)

June 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue - unbilled property taxes
Due to other governments
Funds held in trust
Customer deposits
Internal balances
Compensated absences
Longlerm liabilities:

Due within one year

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets):
Funds held in trust

$ 11,178 $ 6,877
4,915 1,912

42,184
405,000

5,000

$ 18,055
6,827

42,184
405,000

5,000
141,993

3,062
30,239

Long-term liabilities:
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

269,281

768,362

697,325 966,606

1,068,415 1,836,777

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted:

Drug enforcement fund
State street aid
Debt service

1,611,535

36,262
47,577

23,618
388,480

5,933,976 7,545,511

- 36,262
47,577

35,000 35,000
- 23,618

533,661 922,141

Total net assets 2,107,472 6,502,637 8,610,109

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,875,834 $ 7,571,052 $ 10,446,886

219 219

3,948 3,948

Total liabilities (payable from current assets)

141,993
3,062

30,239

Total liabilities (payable from restricted assets)

30,000 182,840 212,840

498,277 371,090 869,367

804 - 804

804 - 804

Other
Unrestricted

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Primary government
Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Drug enforcement
Highways and streets
State street aid
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Health, welfare and social services
Community development

$ 689,683
710,133

28,169
185,086
75,666

128,595
70,245
41,359
61,931

2,746 $
106.390

17.843
3.522

120,408
120

(613,997) $
(579,028)

13,743
(181,564)

8,096
(8,187)

(70,125)
(41,359)

- S (613.997)
- (579,028)
- 13,743
- (181,564)
- 8,096
- (8,187)
- (70,125)
- (41,359)

General revenues:
Taxes:

(1,472,421)

(49.142) (49,142)

(49.142) (49.142)

Sales taxes
Property taxes
In-lieu of tax
Wholesale beer tax
Income tax
Gas taxes
Other taxes

Interest earned
Miscellaneous

801,613
399,503

99,891
147.015

7,091
6,631

78,641
1,376

50,370

801,613
399,503

99,891
147,015

7,091
6,631

78,641
314 1,690

50.370

Total general revenues 1,592,131 314 1.592,445

Change in net assets 119,710 (48,828) 70,882

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

1,987,762 6.551,465 8,539,227

$ - 2,107.472 $ 6.502,637 $ 8,610,109

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges

for Services

Program Revenues
Operating

Grants and
Contributions

$

Changes in Net Assets
Capital

Grants and
Contributions

$ 72,940
14.915

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

9,800
24,069

83,762

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer Fund

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

61,931

1,990,867 251,029 179,562

1,344.3g9 1.295,257 -

1,344,399 1,295.257 -

$ 3,335,266 $ 1,546,286 $ 179,562

87,855 (1.472,421)

$ 87,855 (1,472,421) (49.142) (1,521,563)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements,
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2011)

Other
Governmental Totals

ASSETS General Fund Funds 2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents $ 160819 $ - $ 160,819 $ 104636
Investments 50000 - 50,000 100,000
Receivables:

Property taxes (net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $48,733) 31,921 - 31,921 33,663

Unbilled property taxes 405,000 - 405,000 407,000
Due from governmental units 53,344 - 53,344 175533
Due from other funds 420 3,062 3,482 2,178
Due from customers - 20,465 20,465 16,108
Other 134,838 134,838 250

Prepaid expenses 36,169 - 36,169 36,147
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 23,618 70,192 93,810 47,029
Due from governmental units 14,871 14871 15,381

Total assets $ 896,129 $ 108,590 $ 1,004,719 $ 937,925

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Payable from current assets:

Accounts payable $ 11,178 $ - $ 11,178 $ 2,276
Accrued liabilities 4,915 - 4,915 4,327
Funds held in trust 5000 - 5,000 -

Deferred revenue 31,280 10,904 42,184 46,887
Deferred revenue - unbilled property taxes 405,000 405,000 407,000

Total current liabilities (payable from 457,373 10,904 468,277 460,490
current assets)

Payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payable - - - 31
Due to other funds - 420 420 420
Funds held in trust - 804 804

Total current liabilities (payable from - 1,224 1,224 451
current assets)

Total liabilities 457,373 12,128 469,501 460,941

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Prepaid expenses 36,169 - 36,169 36,147
Restricted:

Fire department 7,395 - 7,395 3,720
911 funds 15,600 - 15,600 12,300
Cemetery funds 623 623 490
Drug enforcement fund - 36,262 36,262 22,497
State street aid - 47,577 47,577 39,462

Committed:
Court 815 815 1,750
Sanitation fund 12,623 12,623 8,894

Unreserved 378,154 378,154 351,724

Total fund balances 438,756 96,462 535,218 476,984

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 896,129 $ 108,590 $ 1,004,719 $ 937,925

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2012

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 535,218

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental
funds. The cost of assets is $2856235 and the accumulated
depreciation is $984,700. 1,871535

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities
in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Notes payable $(260,000)
Compensated absences (39,281) (299,281)

Total net assets - governmental activities $2,107,472

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS! TENNESSEE

Statement of Revenues! Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -

Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011)

Other
General Governmental Totals

Fund Funds 2012 2011
Revenues:

Localtaxes $ 1,195,497 $ - $ 1,195,497 $ 1,159,456
Licenses and permits 2,746 - 2,746 2,225
Intergovernmental revenue 434,474 83,762 518,236 935,150
Fines and forfeits 106,390 17,843 124,233 177,250
Charges for service 3,642 120,408 124,050 93,463
Other income 36,780 3,357 40,137 17,087
Interest income 1,335 41 1,376 2,773
Sale of fixed assets 13,590 20,712 34,302 20,275

Total revenues 1,794,454 246.123 2,040,577 2,407,679

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 730,322 - 730,322 1,126,263
Public safety 657,838 - 657,838 715,533
Highways and streets 171,815 - 171,815 292,571
Health, welfare and social services 41,454 - 41,454 35,806
Culture and recreation 56,553 - 56,553 98,836
Communitydevelopment 61,931 - 61,931 401,336
Drug enforcement - 28,169 28,169 60,757
Sanitation - 128,595 128,595 123,661
State street aid - 75,666 75,666 224,734

Debt service:
Principal retirement 30,000 - 30,000 33,426
Interest - - - 495

Total expenditures 1,749,913 232,430 1,982,343 3,113,418

Revenues over (under) expenditures 44,541 13,693 58,234 (705,739)

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of notes - - - 300,000
Interfund transfers - in - 11,916 11,916 106,309
Interfund transfers - out (11,916) - (11,916) (106,309)

Total other financing sources (uses) (11,916) 11,916 - 300,000

Revenues and other financing sources -

over (under) expenditures and other
financing uses 32,625 25,609 58,234 (405,739)

Fund balance, beginning 406,131 70,853 476,984 882,723

Fund balance, ending $ 438,756 $ 96,462 $ 535,218 $ 476,984

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total net changes in fund balances - governmental funds $ 58234

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their useful lives as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlays ($157661) exceed
depreciation expense ($109,735) in the period. 47,926

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets. 30,000

Loss on the sale or disposal of assets is reported as an expense
on the statement of activities, but not reported on the governmental
funds financial statement, nor are the proceeds of $6,520 related
to the sale recorded as revenues. (13,215)

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses --

compensated absences (sick pay and vacation) --are measured
by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds,
however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount
of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid).
This year, vacation and sick leave earned was more than the amounts
used. (3,235)

Changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 119,710

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund Type

June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 392,946
Investments 126,683
Receivables:

Customers, less allowance for doubtful 116,522
accounts of $195,441

Interest 227
Other 5,622

Prepaid expenses 8,885

Total current assets 650,885

Restricted assets:
Bond sinking fund - cash 47,309
Investments 58,717

Total restricted assets 106,026

Capital assets:
Land and land rights 43,545
Water and sewer plant 12,837,619
Machinery and equipment 329,662
Vehicles 99,702

Total capital assets 13,310,528

Less: Accumulated depreciation 6,496,387

Net capital assets 6,814,141

Total assets $ 7,571,052

(Continued)



TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund Type
(Continued)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

June 30, 2012

24

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Current installments of long-term debt
Accounts payable:

Trade
Other

Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Accrued interest

$ 182,840

6,877
1,912
3,062
3,948

141,993
30,239

219

Total current liabilities (payable
from current assets) 371,090

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities

Total liabilities

697,325

1,068,415

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

5,933,976
35,000

533,661

6,502,637

$ 7,571,052

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets -

Proprietary Fund Type

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Operating revenues:
Metered water sales $ 554,256
Sewer service charges 504,300
Water and sewer tap fees 61230
Discounts and penalties 46,127
Water surcharge 26,976
Fuel surcharge 102368

1,295,257

Operating expenses:
Operation 643,604
Administrative and general 263,986
Maintenance 72,187
Depreciation 326,712

1,306,489

Operating income (loss) (11,232)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 314
Interest expense (37,910)

(37596)

Change in net assets (48,828)

Net assets, beginning 6,551,465

Net assets, ending $ 6,502,637

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 1,301007
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (604,959)
Cash payments to employees for services (373,157)

Net cash provided by operating activities 322891

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (10,144)
Interest paid (39,019)
Principal paid on long-term debt maturities (176,007)

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (225,170)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 302
Advances from (repayments to) the Town, net 1,304
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 206,346
Purchase of investments (206,359)

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,593

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 99,314

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 340,941

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 440,255

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 392,946

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 47,309

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 440,255

(Continued)



27

TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type
(Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ (11232)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 326,712
Decrease in accounts receivable 4,003
Decrease in other receivables 4,056
Decrease in prepaid expenses 1,454
Increase in accounts payable 6,544
Increase in other payables 1,776
Decrease in due to other governments (380)
Decrease in compensated absences (7,733)
Decrease in customer deposits (2,309)

334,123

$ 322,891

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011)

2012 2012
Original Final 2012 2011
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenues:
Taxes:

Real and personal property taxes $ 411,500 $ 411,500 $ 393,122 $ 399,195
Penalty and interest 6,000 6,000 6,381 9,165
Payment in lieu of tax - electric utilities 11,000 14,000 14,397 12,426
Local sales tax - county trustee 500,000 524,000 557,527 514,020
Wholesalebeertax 130,000 130,000 147,015 141,163
Business taxes 27,000 27,000 25,313 34,398
Cable W franchise tax 41,000 41,000 41,228 41,059
Room occupancy tax 7,000 7,000 10,514 8,030

Total taxes 1,133,500 1,160,500 1,195,497 1,159,456

Licenses and permits:
Beer licenses 1,375 1,375 1,825 1,725
Building and related permits - 765 12
Animal registration fees 200 200 46 268
Other permits 200 200 110 220

Total licenses and permits 1,775 1,775 2,746 2,225

Intergovernmental revenues:
Local sales tax - state 232,000 232,000 244,086 240,630
Housing Authority - payments

in lieu of taxes 19,500 19,500 21,547 19,520
WA payments in lieu of taxes 36,000 36,000 63,947 63,433
State law enforcement education 4,800 4,800 4,800 5,400
State law enforcement equipment - 5,000 5,000 -

State income tax 10,000 7,000 7,091 6,942
State beertax 1,700 1,700 1,586 1,723
State city street and transportation tax 6,600 6,600 6,631 7,051
Special area impact funds - 25,378 - -

State excise tax 1,500
E-911 grant - 3,300 4,800
Energy efficient grant - - - 20,800
HOMES grant - - 61,931 401,208
Other state grants - 580 2,940 500
Other county grants - - - 35,997
FEMAgrant - 4,510 11,615 37,595

Total intergovernmental revenues 312,100 343,066 434,474 845,599

Fines and forfeits:
City court fines and costs 127,000 111,000 106,390 124,779

Total fines and forfeits 127,000 111,000 106,390 124,779

Other charges for services:
Library charges - - 120 20
Street maintenance contract 5,000 2,500 3,522 5,041

Total other charges for services 5,000 2,500 3,642 5,061

(Continued)
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
~ith Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011)

2012 2012
Original Final 2012 2011
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenues (continued):
Other income:

Miscellaneous $ 600 $ 1,317 $ 9,378 $ 2,007
Interest 2,500 1,500 1,335 2,723
Insurance recoveries 2,500 12086 20,357 3,470
Donations 2,500 6,400 7,045 4,915
Penalties - 5,500 - -

Sale of fixed assets 3,000 13,060 13,590 20,275

Total other income 11,100 39,863 51,705 33,390

Total revenues 1,590,475 1,658,704 1,794,454 2,170,510

Expenditures:
General government:

Board of Aldermen:
Employee education and training 150 150 20 -

Fees of officials 2,880 2,880 2,640 2,480
Radio and television services 1,325 1,325 900 1,050
Publication of legal notices 100 100 105

Total Board of Aldermen 4,455 4,455 3,560 3,635

Judicial:
Employee education and training 475 475 475 475
Per diem 300 300 84 232
Postage, box rent, etc. 25 25 17 26
Books, catalogues, and brochures 500 500 411 498
Memberships and registration fees 175 175 300 75
Publicity and subscriptions 1,000 1,000 467 898
Telephone - 50 21 -

Travel 150 150 94 64
Supplies 50 50 20 -

Total Judicial 2,675 2,725 1,889 2,268

City Court:
Employee education and training 100 100 - -

Per diem 220 220 90 276
Printing and stationery 200 200 - 118
Books, catalogs and brochures 50 50 528 -

Data processing services 3,068 2,818 2,673 3,068
Repair and maintenance services 200 200 - 130
Travel 500 500 264 338
Supplies 50 250 240 -

Office supplies and materials 100 100 31 84
Small items of equipment 200 200 590 37
Household and janitorial supplies 50 50 - -

State litigation fees 10,000 10,000 7,979 8,721
Other improvements 300 300 126 9,740

Total City Court 15,038 14,988 12,521 22,512

(Continued)
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
QNith Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011)

2012 2012
Original Final 2012 2011
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Expenditures (continued):
General government (continued):

Mayor:
Fees of officials $ 600 $ 600 $ 600 $ 600
Contractual services 15,000 15,000 15,000 15600
Memberships and registration fees 600 600 1,657 528
Radio and TV services 1,282 -

Public relations - 1600 3,900 5,267
Telephone 1,000 1,000 1,123 858
Repair and maintenance services - - 259 -

Feeding prisoners 1600 1,600 3251 2,905
Office supplies 50 50
Tourism - 75
Gas! oil, and diesel fuel 800 800 681 760
Motor vehicle parts - - 76 -

Total Mayor 19,650 21,250 27,904 26,518

City Administrator:
Salaries and wages 75,498 75,498 63,354 73,963
Bonus pay 2,707 2,707 2,544 5,507
Employee education and training - 410 260
Per diem 156
Postage and box rent 1,600 1,600 1956 1,830
Radio and television services 1,282 200
Books, catalogues, and brochures - - 146 -

Publication of formal and legal notices 500 500 1,167 569
Memberships and registration fees 1,500 1,500 535 1,864
Public relations - - 33 501
Telephone 2,000 2,000 1,292 2,114
Vaccination and drug testing 200 200 - -

Other professional services 500 500 - -

Repair and maintenance services 500 500 1,366 459
Travel 450 720
Supplies 250 250 125 183
Office supplies and materials 3,000 3,000 4,872 4,211
Small items of equipment 1,311 1,311 1,646 1,330
Gas, oil, and diesel fuel 3,000 3,000 1,740 3,187
Motorvehicle parts 800 800 1,497 204
Tires, tubes, etc. 752
Surety bonds for officials and employees 50 50 - 50
Penalties for late payments - - 1,306 523

Total City Administrator 93,416 93,416 86,473 97,831

City Election:
Fees 5,000 5,000 3,935

Total City Election 5,000 5,000 3,935

(Continued)
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Continued)

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011)

2012 2012
Original Final 2012 2011
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Expenditures (continued):
General government (continued):

City Recorder:
Salaries and wages $ 16,791 $ 16,791 $ 16,144 $ 16,144
Bonus pay - 645
Fees 600 600 - -

Postage 100 100 39 70
Telephone, cells, and pagers 29
Travel 150 150 69 130
Supplies 100 100 87 -

Operating supplies 400 400 416 358
State fees 5,000 5,000 315 245

Total City Recorder 23,141 23,141 17,099 17,592

City Attorney:
Professional services 1,000 1,000 300 -

Legal services 7,500 7,500 5,342 6,936

Total City Attorney 8,500 5,500 5,642 6,936

Tax administration:
Postage 450 450 700 428
Printing, duplicating, and typing 700 700 522 621
Publication of formal and legal - - 56
Accounting and auditing services 500 500 - 134
Data processing services 3,650 3,680 3,025 3,658
Office supplies and materials 150 150 374 167
Small items of equipment 400 400 330 349

Total tax administration 5,580 5,880 5,007 5,387

Treasurer:
Salaries and wages 37,814 37,814 37,880 39,946
Otherwages 14,034 14,034 12,135 17,115
Bonus pay - 1,900
Employee education and training 425 425 350 500
Membership and registration fees 50 50 149 45
Accounting and auditing services 14,000 14,000 21,663 17,891
Data processing services 2,792 2,792 2,276 2,792
Travel 700 700 467 660
Office supplies and materials 350 350 506 347
Small items of equipment 400 400 305 1,230
Surety bonds for officials and employees 50 50 - 50
Wire transfer charge - 286 312 -

TotalTreasurer 70,615 70,901 76,043 82,476

Planning and zoning:
Publication of formal and legal notices 150 150 41
Professional services 3,000 3,000 1,545 3,209
Tennessee state planning office 7,250 7,250 6,000 7,250
Permit fee - - - -

Total planning and zoning 10,400 10,400 7,545 10,500

(Continued)
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011)

2012 2012
Original Final 2012 2011
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Expenditures (continued):
General government (continued):

City hall buildings:
Feesofofficials $ - $ - $ - $ 28
Contractual services 2,500 2,500 6,732 2,593
Public relations 500 1,000 962 271
Electric 8,000 8,000 7,616 8,558
Water 1,200 1,200 579 570
Gas 3,700 3,700 1,643 2,784
Telephone 8,000 8,000 5,021 6,144
Professional services 2,500 2,500 - 2,052
Vaccinations and drug testing 600 600 - 600
Repair and maintenance services 1,000 1,000 1,438 2,710
Repair and maintenance - furniture - - 318 -

Repair and maintenance - buildings 500 500 790 339
Machinery and equipment rent 500 500 378 320
Auction fees - 93 93 -

Supplies 1,500 3,500 3,774 1,629
Small items of equipment - 3,000 2,925 -

Household and janitorial supplies 4,500 4,500 2,790 4,340
Electrical supplies 200 200 879 -

Mulch, top soil, etc. - - 135 -

Building and office rental 4,920 4,920 4,920 4,920
Trustee’s fee 1,144 7,992
Capital outlay - 10,500 19,416 5,304
Other improvements - 25,000 40,948 -

Site acquisition - - - 430,245
Amortization of bond premium 30,000 30,000 - -

Total city hall buildings 70,120 111,213 102,501 481,399

Community Center:
Water - 241 268 -

Gas - 175 113 -

Supplies - 100 12 -

Painting or plumbing supplies - 100 40 -

Total community center - 616 433

Other general government:
Insurance 15,000 15,000 29,586 17,254
Retirement and pension contributions 30,000 30,000 35,717 39,514
Worker’s compensation 26,000 26,000 18,614 22,341
Unemployment insurance 3,000 3,000 1,466 1,850
O.A.S.l. 66,000 66,000 57,207 61,782
Hospital and health insurance 237,000 237,000 237,180 226,465

Total other general government 377,000 377,000 379,770 369,209

Total general government 705,890 749,485 730,322 1,126,263

(Continued)
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Expenditures (continued):
Public safety:

Police:
Salaries and wages $ 452,634 $ 457,664 $ 452,625 $ 463,644
Bonus pay - 15,597
Employee education and training 1,500 1500 446 415
Per diem 850 850 743 1,752
Contractual services 10,000 10,000 10,347 11,674
Postage 300 300 326 455
Automobile licenses and titles - - 53
Radio and television services 1000 1,000 342 -

Vehicle tow-in services 500 540 100 -

Printing, duplicating and typing 1,000 1,000 1,055 1,549
Books, catalogues and brochures 500 500 - 108
Formal and legal publications 100 100 - -

Membership and registration fees 200 200 125 410
Public relations 250 250 473 384
Other publicity and subscriptions - - 253 284
Electric - - 3,681 -

Water 900 900 1,132 1,147
Gas 612 -

Telephone 6,500 6,500 9,184 8,450
Vaccinations and drug testing 500 500 1,414 -

Repair and maintenance services 9,000 9,556 9,162 13,120
Repair and maintenance - furniture 350 350 - 240
Repair and maintenance - building 150 150 142 62
Travel 1,000 1,000 238 1,020
Machinery and equipment rental 250 250 263 311
Supplies 2,000 2,000 4,067 2,220
Office supplies and materials 3,000 3,000 3,439 5,161
Small items of equipment 3,000 8,000 8,788 6,324
Household and janitorial supplies 3,000 3,000 3,996 3,183
Clothing and uniforms 3,500 3,500 4,308 3,855
Firearm supplies 1,000 1,000 4,873 -

Gas, oil, diesel fuel and grease 35,000 35,032 42,845 41,029
Motor vehicle parts 9,000 11,160 6,915 15,975
Tires, tubes, etc. 3,500 4,155 5,214 1,601
Electrical supplies 50 50 28 619
Safety supplies 1,000 1,000 229 60
Principal retirement - - 16,342
Interest - - - 643

Total police 551,534 565,007 577,428 617,634

Fire protection and control:
Bonus pay - - 1,6Q0
Employee education and training 6,500 6,500 6,733 14,122
Volunteerfiremen 15,500 15,500 18,389 15,510
Fees - - 26
Radio and television services 500 500 33 623
Vehicle tow-in services - -

Publications of legal notices 200 200 - 111
Memberships and registration fees 500 500 250 150

(Continued)
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Expenditures (continued):
Public safety (continued):

Fire protection and control (continued):
Electric $ 3,500 $ 3,500 $ 2,985 $ 3,585
Water 1,500 1,500 637 1,095
Gas 3,500 3,500 1,468 2,655
Telephone 1,500 1,500 1,447 1,042
Reporting software - 3,110 3,110 -

Repair and maintenance services 2,100 2,100 4,317 4,063
Repair and maintenance - buildings 1,000 1,000 1,270 349
Machinery and equipment rental 200 200 - -

Supplies 1,000 1,000 1,007 2,086
Small items of equipment 1,500 2,900 15,640 2,600
Household and janitorial supplies 200 200 102 138
Clothing and uniforms 500 500 4,616 1,762
Gas, oil, diesel fuel and grease 3,000 3,000 2,439 2,953
Motor vehicle parts 2,000 2,000 2,938 5,033
Machinery and equipment part - - 10,529
Tires, tubes, etc. - 1,802
Painting or plumbing supplies 40 40 43 40
Electrical supplies 100 100 44 56
Consumable tools 500 500 - 57
Safety supplies - 198 -

Small hardwire and wire - - 118
Capital outlay - - - 18,887
Other improvements 10,000 - - -

Total fire protection and control 55,340 49,850 67,784 90,874

Civil defense:
Electric 500 500 403 ~13
Water 6,000 6,000 7,248 6,622
Gas 300 300 92 90
Other improvements - 4,000 4,883

Total civil defense 6,800 10,800 12,626 7,025

Total public safety 613,674 625,657 657,838 715,533

Highways and streets:
Administrative expenses:

Salaries and wages 109,784 109,784 108,811 118,476
Bonus pay 4,659
Employee education and training 50 50 25
Automobile licenses and titles - 46 -

Vehicle tow-in-service - - 100 -

Electric - - 3,911
Telephone and telegraph 650 650 615 526
Vaccinations, drug testing and evaluations 50 50 - 50
Repair and maintenance services 6,000 6,000 5,841 9,221
Repair and maintenance - traffic lights 500 500 - 328
Machinery and equipment rental 6,009
Auction fees - - I 296

(Continued)
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Expenditures (continued):
Highways and streets (continued):

Administrative expenses (continued):
Supplies $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,623 $ 1,505
Small items of equipment 1,000 1,000 1,283 870
Agriculture and horticulture supplies 1,000 1,000 120 273
Chemical, laboratory, and medical supplies 700 700 3,501 2,811
Household and janitorial supplies 200 200 180 14
Clothing and uniforms - - - 142
Gas, oil, diesel fuel and grease 17,000 17,000 16,384 21,578
Motor vehicle parts 4,500 4,500 6,364 4,653
Machinery and equipment parts 2,000 2,000 2,933 3,132
Tires, tubes, etc. 1,000 1,000 596 2,860
Painting and plumbing supplies 500 500 369 116
Electrical supplies 1,000 1,000 1,592 2,225
Consumable tools 750 750 855 823
Sign parts and supplies 1,000 1,000 - 3,954
Safety supplies 1,000 1,000 882 1,731
Ready mixed concrete 100 100 - -

Concrete blocks 400 400 24 41
Cement and concrete supplies 400 400 125 52
Metal products 1,000 1,000 53 427
Small hardware, wire and nails 300 300 176 241
Metal culverts 500 500 - -

Lumber 450 450 172 345
Crushed stone 3,000 3,000 2,326 4,314
Gravel and sand 3,500 3,500 1,002 3,590
Asphalt and asphaltfiller 1,500 1,500 1,223 1,861
Capital outlay - 6.142 - 94,784

Total administrative expenses 160,834 166,976 167,116 286,925

City garage:
Electric 2,200 2,200 2,228 2,214
Water 300 300 370 325
Gas 3,200 3,200 1,721 2,385
Repair and maintenance services 50 50 -

Repair and maintenance - buildings 100 100 - 100
Supplies 400 400 294 541
Painting and plumbing supplies 350 350 - 30
Electrical supplies 50 50 86 45
Cement and concrete supplies 50 50 -

Small hardware - - - 6

Total city garage 6,700 6.700 4,699 5,646

Total highways and streets 167,534 173,676 171,815 292,571

Health, welfare, and social services:
Rabies and animal control:

Salaries and wages 25,066 25,066 24,109 24,041
Bonus pay - - - 915
Contractual services 5,000 5,000 3,820 3,640

(Continued)
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Expenditures (continued):
Health, welfare, and social services (continued):

Rabies and animal control (continued):
Vehicle tow in services $ - $ - $ 40 $ -

Medical, dental! veterinary 250 250 170 , -

Repair and maintenance services 500 4,400 4,230 566
Travel 50 50 - -

Auction fees - 128 128 -

Supplies 200 200 328 118
Small items of equipment 1,600 1,600 302 -

Operating supplies 100 100 - -

Clothing and uniforms 300 300 544 -

Gas, oil, diesel fuel and grease 5,000 5,000 5,033 5,117
Motor vehicle parts 400 2,110 2,690 839
Tires, tubes, etc. 400 400 60 570

Total rabies and animal control 38,866 44,604 41,454 35,806

Total health, welfare, and social services 38,866 44,604 41 .454 35,806

Culture and recreation:
Parks and recreation centers:

Salaries perm employees 11,029 11 ,02g 11,029 11,029
Bonus pay - - 441
Electric 3,000 3,000 3,016 2,858
Water 1,500 1,500 1,040 1,435
Repair and maintenance services 1,000 1,000 1,060 2,889
Repair and maintenance - traffic lights 500 500 - -

Repair and maintenance - plumbing 250 250 - -

Supplies 500 500 456 814
Small items of equipment 500 500 200 159
Agriculture and horticulture supplies 1,000 1,000 76 443
Chemical, laboratory and medical supplies 1,500 1,500 1,433 4,083
Janitorial supplies 500 500 176 456
Gas, oil, diesel fuel and grease 700 700 733 781
Machinery and equipment parts 500 500 3,009 408
Painting and plumbing supplies 700 700 7 724
Electrical supplies 500 500 88 172
Consumable tools 50 50 19
Sign parts and supplies - - - 76
Ready mix concrete 100 100 - -

Concrete blocks 100 100 - -

Cement and concrete supplies 50 50 3
Metal products - - 73
Small hardware, wire and nails 50 50 33 41
Lumber 500 500 - 425
Gravel and sand 500 500 378 171
Mulch, topsoil, etc. 700 700 70 1,374
Asphalt and asphalt filler - 37
Capital outlay - 35,580
Other improvements 800 800 - 724

Total parks and recreation centers 26,529 26,529 22,877 65,142

(Continued)
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Expenditures (continued):
Culture and recreation (continued):

Libraries:
Salaries and wages $ 21,632 $ 21,632 $ 19,360 $ 20,326
Bonus pay - - - 832
Employee education and training 50 50 - -

Perdiem 100 100 6 -

Contractual services 3,500 3,500 2,118 2,991
Postage 50 101 80 -

Books, catalogues and brochures 2,500 2,500 2,254 2,276
Publicity, subscriptions and dues 500 500 357 162
Electric 2,500 2,500 1,972 1,928
Water 500 500 579 270
Gas 3,000 3,000 1,917 2,250
Telephone 600 740 1,411 518
Repair and maintenance services 550 550 603 360
Repair and maintenance - buildings - - 16 61
Travel 200 200 309 59
Machinery and equipment rent - - 56
Supplies 1,000 1,000 979 1,311
Office supplies and materials 500 500 468 117
Small items of equipment 500 1,080 1,121 129
Janitorial supplies 50 50 70 66
Electrical supplies 50 50 - 38

Total libraries 37,782 38,553 33,676 33,694

Total culture and recreation 64,311 65,082 56,553 98,836

Community development:
Publications of formal and legal notices 200 200 -

Homes Grant - - 61,931 401,336

Total community development 200 200 61,931 401,336

Debt service:
Principal retirement - - 30,000 33,426
Interest - - - 495

Total debt service - - 30,000 33,921

Total expenditures 1,590,475 1,658,704 1,749,913 2,704,266

Revenues over (under) expenditures - - 44,541 (533,756)

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of notes - - - 300,000
Transfer (to) from State Street Aid Fund - - - (70,000)
Transfer (to) from Sanitation Fund - - (11,916) (36,309)

Total other financing sources (uses) - - (11,916) 193,691

(Continued)
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Revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other
financing uses $ - $ - $ 32,625 $ (340,065)

Fund balance, beginning 406,131 406,131 406,131 746,1gB

Fund balance, ending $ 406,131 $ 406,131 $ 438756 $ 406,131

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) General Statement

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee (the Town)
relating to the funds included in the accompanying basic financial statements conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America that are applicable
to state and local governments. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for local governments include those principles prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units
and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (when applicable). As permitted by
generally accepted accounting principles, the Town has elected not to apply to its proprietary
activities private sector accounting and financial reporting issued after November 30, 1989.
The more significant accounting policies of the Town are described below.

(b) Reøorting Entity

The financial statements consist of all the funds of the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee.

(c) Basis of Presentation

The Town follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for
State and Local Governments.” Statement No. 34 and subsequent amendments established
standards for external financial reporting for all state and local governmental entities, which
includes a statement of net assets, a statement of activities and changes in net assets and a
statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net assets into three components —

invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. The classifications
are defined as follows:

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net assets consists of
capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If
there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt
attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested in
capital assets, net of related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the
same net assets component as the unspent proceeds.

• Restricted — This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net asset
use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

• Unrestricted net assets — This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not
meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”
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(c) Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The Town also follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. This
statement requires that capital contributions to the Town be presented as a change in net
assets.

The Town’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which
provide a more detailed level of financial information.

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
Town as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activities of the Town at year-end. The statement of activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or
function of the Town’s governmental and business-type activities.

Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or
department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program,
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program and interest earned on grants that is required to be
used to support a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the Town. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the Town.

2. Fund Financial Statements:

During the year, the Town segregates transactions related to certain functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate
legal compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the Town at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental fund
financial atatementa is on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate
column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

(d) Fund Accounting

The Town uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is
defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.
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(d) Fund Accounting (Continued)

Governmental Funds:

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of
current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental
funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental
fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following is the Town’s major
governmental fund:

General Fund — The General Fund is the operating fund of the Town. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The
General Fund typically has been used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in prior years.

Proprietary Fund:

Enterprise Fund — Enterprise funds are used to account for the activities that are similar to
those found in the private sector. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations
(a) that are financed primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing body has
decided that determination of net income is appropriate.

The Water and Sewer Fund is operated as an enterprise fund.

(e) Measurement Focus

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements;

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Town
are included on the statement of net assets.

2. Fund Financial Statements:

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund
financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for
governmental funds.
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(f) Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Goyernment-wide financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the
accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues — Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.
On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the
resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources
will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the Town,
available means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, include grants, entitlements and donations. Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements,
which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year
when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the Town must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which
the resources are provided to the Town on a reimbursement basis. On a modified
accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it
can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be
both measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes, franchise taxes,
special assessments, licenses, charges for services, interest income and
intergovernmental revenue.

2. Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are recorded
as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within
the available period have also been reported as deferred revenue.
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(f) Basis of Accounting (Continued)

3. ExpenseslExpenditures:

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in
net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally
recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if
measurable.

Allocation of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in
governmental funds.

(g) Fund Balances

GASB Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions” states that the objective is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently
applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. The following
classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the
purposes for which resources can be used:

Non-spendable, such as fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term
loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are
restricted, committed, or assigned),

Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the
specific purposes stipulated by constitution, donors, grantors, or through enabling
legislation,

Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a resolution adopted by the Board (the Town’s highest
level of decision making authority), -

Assigned fund balance classification is intended to be used by the government for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.
The Town gives the Board of Aldermen the authority to assign fund balance, and

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the government’s general fund
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.
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(g) Fund Balances (Continued)

If the Town has an expenditure that is incurred for purposes of multiple account
classification, the Towns policy is to apply the expenditures in the following order: non-
spendable fund balance, restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, assigned fund
balance, and unassigned fund balance.

First, non-spendable fund balances are determined. Then restricted fund balances for
specific purposes are determined (not including non-spendable amounts). Then any
remaining fund balance amounts for the non-general funds are classified.

It is possible for the non-general funds to have negative unassigned fund balance when non-
spendable amounts plus the restricted fund balances for specific purposes amounts exceed
the positive fund balance for the non-general fund.

(h) Restricted and Unrestricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
When expenditures are incurred with unrestricted resources, the Town uses the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s policy. Committed amounts are used first,
followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.

(i) Budgetary Procedures and Budgetary Accounting

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the Town Board of Mayor and Aldermen prepares
and approves an operating budget for all governmental funds and holds hearings. All
supplemental appropriations must also be approved by the Town Board of Mayor and
Aldermen. Actual expenditures and operating transfers out may not legally exceed ‘budget”
appropriations at the individual fund level. Budgetary control, however, is maintained at the
departmental level. During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Town overexpended legally
adopted fund budgets in the General Fund and Sanitation Fund.

Appropriations lapse at the close of the fiscal year to the extent that they have not been
transferred or encumbered.

The Town prepares its budget on a basis of accounting that differs from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The major difference
between the budgetary basis of accounting and GAAP is that encumbrances are recorded
as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to a classification of fund balance
(GAAP). At June 30, 2012, there were no encumbrances.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Town Board of Mayor
and Aldermen.
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U) Property Taxes Receivable

The Town’s property taxes, levied on or about October 1, become delinquent on March 1.
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1. The county tax
assessor provides the property assessment but the Town bills and collects its own taxes.
Property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they result in current
receivables within 60 days of the end of the year. Property taxes recognized as a receivable
before the period of revenue recognition are reported as deferred revenue.

At June 30, 2012, the Town’s 2012 property taxes of $405,000 were not scheduled to be
billed until October 2012. Consequently, separate accounts for unbilled property taxes and
deferred revenue — unbilled property taxes totaling $405000 are recorded.

(k) Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed in governmental funds. Open encumbrances at year-end are
reported within the appropriate fund balance categories for the specific purpose of the
encumbrance of assigned if not previously restricted or committed for a specific purpose.
Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

(I) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (weighted average method) or market.

(m) Capitalization of Interest

The Town capitalizes net interest costs and interest earned as part of the cost of
constructing various fixed assets when material. There was no capitalized interest for the
year ended June 30, 2012.

(n) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of these financial statements, the Town considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) having original maturity dates of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

(o) Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to
another without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund
transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds. Repayments
from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for
them are not presented on the financial statements.

Short-term amounts owed between funds are classified as “Due to/from other funds.”
Interfund loans are classified as “Interfund notes receivable/payable.”
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(p) Capital Assets

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets
are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net
assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements. All capital assets are capitalized
at cost or estimated historical cost and updated for additions and retirements during the
year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market values a~ of the date
received. Net interest costs during construction periods are capitalized for assets acquired
by the issuance of long-term debt. Major additions and improvements are capitalized; the
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend an asset’s life are charged to operations.

Town

The Town maintains a capitalization threshold of five hundred dollars.

All reported capital assets except for land and land improvements are depreciated.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Estimated
Description Useful Lives

Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Vehicles 10-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Streets 100 years

Water and Sewer Fund

The Water and Sewer Fund maintains a capitalization threshold of five hundred dollars. All
reported capital assets except for land and land improvements are depreciated.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.

Depreciation is computed on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line
method. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
Description Useful Lives

Vehicles 5 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Water and sewer plant 30 - 50 years
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
(Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(q) Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are reported in accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16,
“Accounting for Compensated Absences.’ Vacation and sick leave benefits are accrued as
a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive compensation are
attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the Town will compensate
the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The Town
records a liability for accumulated unused vacation time and sick leave for all employees in
accordance with the Town’s vesting policy.

All vacation leave and vested sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide
statements. A liability for vacation pay and vested sick leave is reported in governmental
funds only if amounts have matured; for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.

Sick leave is earned and credited to hourly employees at the rate of eight hours per month.
However, an employee is not eligible to use sick leave credits until completion of three
months’ employment. There is no limit on the amount of sick leave which may be
accumulated by an employee.

An employee who retires or is terminated with two or more years of continuous service and a
minimum of 160 hours (20 days) of accrued sick leave may add their accrued sick leave to
length of service for retirement purposes.

Full-time salaried employees do not accrue sick days; however, they will receive their regular
salary throughout their absence up to 18 months.

Employees hired before February 16, 2006 are subject to a prior sick leave policy which
allowed for payment of a percentage of accrued sick leave (up to 800 hours) based on
length of service. For employees subject to this prior policy, hours accumulated at
February 16, 2006 are banked for future use. Any banked amount not used at retirement will
be paid to the employee based on vesting percentages determined by length of service.

All full-time personnel receive vacation leave in the following manner:

0 to 1 year of employment I weeWyear
2nd thru 4th year of employment 2 weeks/year
5th thru 10th year of employment 3 weeks/year
Over 10 years of employment 4 weeks/year

Vacation leave can accumulate up to but not to exceed thirty days. All leave accumulated in
excess of 30 days is lost on December 31 of each year. An employee is not eligible to use
annual leave credits until completion of six months of employment.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(r) Restricted Assets

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the normal
understanding of the availability of the asset. Such constraints are either imposed by
creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments or imposed by enabling
legislation.

(s) Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012, are
recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid
amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in
the year in which services are consumed.

(t) Debt Premiums, Discounts and Issuance Costs

Bonds payable are reported net of any applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

(u) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(v) Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or
regulations of other governments.

(w) Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent
in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the
Town and that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither type of
transaction occurred during fiscal year 2012.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(x) Operating and Non-Operating Revenues

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and
expenses related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating
revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services. Principal
operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative
expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified
as non-operating in financial statements.

(y) Totals

The total column on the fund financial statements is only presented to facilitate financial
analysis. Data in this column does not present financial position, results of operations, or
changes in cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

(2) Cash, Cash Eguivalents and Investments

Cash and Cash Eguivalents:

At June 30, 2012, all of the Town’s deposits with financial institutions were insured by federal
depository insurance or by bank participation in the Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool. Interest rates
on these accounts range from 0.00% - 0.05%.

Investments:

At June 30, 2012, the Town had certificates of deposit whose maturities were greater than three
months at the time of purchase. Interest rates on these certificates of deposit range from 0.05% -

2.25%.

Investments - The Town is authorized to invest in U.S. Government obligations and its agencies or
instrumentalities, obligations of any municipality rated as to investment quality of ‘A” or its
equivalent rating, commercial paper in the highest rating which matures within 270 days from
purchase date, U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts and federal funds and bankers’
acceptances with domestic commercial banks which have a rating of ‘A” or its equivalent rating on
their short-term certificates of deposit on the date of purchase and maturing within 360 days of the
purchase date.

(3) Capital Assets

Governmental asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Balance Balance
Julyl, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30,2012

Go’~ernmentaI Acti’Aties

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 192,000 $ 15,000 $ - $ 207,000
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(3) Capital Assets (Continued)

Balance Balance
July 1,2011 Additions Deductions June 30,2012

Governmental ActMties (Continued)

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements $ 836,968 $ 100,039 $ - $ 937007
Machineryand equipment 400638 30,665 11774 419,529
Vehicles 469,394 11,957 24,900 456,451
Streets 836,248 - - 836,248

Total capital assets, being
depreciated 2543,248 142,661 36,674 2649,235

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 184,809 26,293 - 211,102
Machinery and equipment 178,354 39,943 8,941 209,356
Vehicles 160,204 36,478 14,518 182,164
Streets 375,057 7,021 - 382,078

Total accumulated depreciation 898,424 109,735 * 23,459 984,700

Capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,644,824 32,926 13,215 1,664,535

Governmental activities capital
assets, net $1,836,824 $ 47,926 $13,215 $ 1,871,535

*Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government $ 15,963
Health, welfare and social ser’,eices 361
Public safety 53,750
Public works 26,572
Culture and recreational 13,089

Total depreciation expense $ 109,735

Business-type capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1,2011 Additions Deductions June 30-2012

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 43,545 $ - $ - $ 43,545

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 43,545 - 43,545
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
(Continued)

Business-Type Activities (Continued)

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Utility plant:
Water and Sew er Rant
Machinery and equipiTent
Vehicles

Total capital assets, being
depreciated

$ 12,827,475
329,662

99,702

13,256,839

Balance
June 30,2012

Less accuntlated depreciation for:
Utility plant:
Water and Sewer Rant
Machinery and equipnEnt
Vehicles

Total accurnilated depreciation

Capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital
assets, net

6,080,949
315,736

99,702

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Gowrnmental Acti’Aties

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2011 Additions Retirements June 30, 2012 One Year

William and Connie Sharp
Town Hall Loan, 2/1/21 $ 290,000 $ - $ 30,000 $ 260,000 $ 30,000

Compensated absences 36,046 61,616 56,381 39,281 15,717

$ 326,046 $ 61,616 $ 88,381 $ 299,281 $ 45,717

Balance
July 1,2011 Additions Deductions

$ 10,144 $ - $ 12,837,619
- - 329,662
- - 99,702

10,144 - 13,266,983

5,758,773
311,200

99,702

322,176
4,536

6,169,675 326,712 - 6,496,387

7,087,164 (316,568) - 6,770,596

$ 7,130,709 $ (316,568) $ - $ 6,814,141

Depreciation amounted to $326,712 for the year
capitalized.

(4) Long-Term Liabilities

ended June 30, 2012, of which $ -0- was
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(4) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Notes

$300000 Capital Outlay Note, Series 2011, due in monthly installments of
$2,500 through February 1, 2021. There is no interest due on this note. $ 260,000

Total Notes Payable $ 260,000

Balance Balance Lue W~hin
Business-Type Activities July 1, 2011 Additions Retirerrents June 30, 2012 One Year

CDBG Loan $ 68,156 $ - $ 21,921 $ 46,235 $ 22,781

1978 Fl-t~ Bonds 60,000 - 7,000 53,000 8,000

State Revolving Loan (SRF 92-045)
to finance sewer renovation 662,897 - 142,956 519,941 147,744

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax
Bonds, Series 2004 265,119 - 4,130 260,989 4,315

Corrpensated absences 37,972 19,380 27,113 30,239 30,239

$1,094,144 $ 19,380 $ 203,120 $ 910,404 $ 213,079

Revenue Bonds

$89,500 CDBG Loan, due in annual principal installments ranging from
$22,781 to $23,454 through February 24, 2014. Interest at 4.00%. $ 46,235

FHA Water Re~nue and Tax Deficiency Bonds, Series 1978, due in annual
principal installments ranging from $8,000 to $10,000 through January 1,
2018. Interest at 5.00%. 53,000

State Re~oMng Loan (SRF 92-045) to finance sewer renovation, due in
monthly principal and interest installments of $13,685 through 2016.
Interest at 3.3%. 519,941

Water and Sewer Re~enue and Tax Bonds, Series 2004, due in monthly
principal and interest installments of $1,304 through 2042. Interest at
4.375%. 260,989

Total Bonds Payable $ 880,165
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(4) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Principal and Interest Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize long-term liabilities as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Governmental PctNities Business-Type Pctivities Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 $ 30,000 $ - $ 182,840 $ 32,118 $ 212,840 $ 32,118
2014 30,000 - 188,662 25,657 218,662 25,657
2015 30,000 - 171,521 18,972 201,521 18,972
2016 30,000 - 75,605 13,248 105,605 13,248
2017 30,000 - 14,139 11,234 44,139 11,234
2018-2022 110,000 - 39,349 49,141 149,349 49,141
.2023-2027 - - 36,510 41,730 36,510 41,730
2028-2032 - - 45,419 32,821 45,419 32,821
2033-2038 - - 56,504 21,736 56,504 21,736
2039-2043 - - 69,616 7,938 69,616 7,938

Total $ 260,000 $ - $ 880,165 $ 254,595 $ 1,140,165 $ 254,595

(5) Leases

The Town leases office space from the Omega Lodge No. 536. The rented area is used by the
Town Hall and the Water Department. The Town entered into a new lease agreement with the
Omega Lodge beginning July 1, 2004 and expiring June 30, 2014, with rental payments due of
$4,920 per year.

Future rental payments as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Fiscal
Year

June 30,

2013 $4,920
2014 4,920

(6) Pension Plan

Employees of the Town of Oliver Springs are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan
(PSPP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee
Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high five-year
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(6) Pension Plan (Continued)

average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five
years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to
vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five
years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no
service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the
member was in the performance of duty. Members joining the system after July 1, 1979 become
vested after five years of service and members joining prior to July 1, 1979 were vested after four
years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37
of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General
Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the Town of Oliver Springs participate in the TCRS as
individual entities and are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of
their plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by
the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to
Tennessee Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 101h Floor Andrew Jackson
Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at www.tn.gov/treasurv/tcrs/PS/.

Funding Policy

The Town of Oliver Springs requires employees to contribute 5.0 percent of earnable
compensation.

The Town of Oliver Springs is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was 4.99 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirement of plan members is set by state statute. Contribution requirements for the Town of
Oliver Springs are established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Town of Oliver Springs’ annual pension cost of $52,748 to
the TCRS was equal to the Town of Oliver Springs’ required and actual contributions. The required
contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry
age actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate
of return on investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a year compounded annually,
(b) projected 3.0 percent annual rate of inflation, (c) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent
(graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the
effects of inflation on salaries), and (d) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security
wage base. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effect
of short-term volatility in the market value of equities over a ten-year period. The Town of Oliver
Springs’ unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed
basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2009 was 13 years. An actuarial evaluation
was performed as of July 1, 2011, which established contribution rates effective July 1, 2012.
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(6) Pension Plan (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost (Continued)

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension

Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

6/30/2012 $ 52,748 100.00% $0
6/30/2011 57,774 100.00% $0
6/30/2010 39,075 100.00% $0
6/30/2009 36,019 100.00% $0
6/30/2008 50,050 100.00% $0
6/30/2007 51,044 100.00% $0
6/30/2006 34,988 100.00% $0
6/30/2005 31,274 100.00% $0
6/30/2004 15,083 100.00% $0
6/3012003 14,894 100.00% $0

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was 95.22 percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2.26 million, and the actuarial value of assets was
$2.16 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UPAL) of $0.11 million. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $1.9 million, and the
ratio of the UPAL to the covered payroll was 9.13 percent.

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether
the actuarial values of Plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for
benefits.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the Plan to prepare the Schedule
of Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. The requirement to present the
Schedule of Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method went into effect during the
year of the 2007 actuarial valuation, therefore only the two most recent valuations are presented.

(7) Interfund Receivables/Payables

Interfund receivable/payable balances at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Due To
General Sanitation

Due From Fund Fund Total

Drug Enforcement Fund $ 420 $ - $ 420
Water and Sewer Fund - 3,062 3,062

Total $ 420 $ 3062 $ 3,482
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(7) Interfund Receivables/Payables (Continued)

The Drug Enforcement Fund owed the General Fund money for expenses paid in a prior year by
the General Fund.

The Water and Sewer Fund bills and collects for the Sanitation Fund. Those collections are
remitted to the Sanitation Fund monthly.

(8) Due From Other Governments

Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2012 consist of the following:

of Tennessee
of Tennessee
of Tennessee
of Tennessee

City Streets and Transportation
Sales Tax
Income Tax
Business Tax
Gasoline and Motor Fuel Tax

$ 1,104
44,125

7,091
1,024

14,871

(9) Risk Management

$ 68,215

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town purchases
commercial insurance for all of these risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

(10) Litigation

From time to time there are lawsuits and/or claims pending against the Town of Oliver Springs,
Tennessee. In the event of any unfavorable outcomes, the Town has insurance coverage;
however, there may be certain reservations of coverage as to certain aspects of the claims.
Therefore, the Town may be subject to losses, which are not ascertainable at this time.

(11) Interfund Transfers
Transfers From:

General
Transfers To:

Sanitation Fund

Total

Fund

$ 11,916

$ 11,916

Transfers were used
charges.

to move General Fund monies to cover Sanitation expenses in excess of

(12) Subsequent Events

Subsequent to June 30, 2012 and before the financial statements were issued on February 25,
2013, the Town acquired a new capital loan in the amount of $77,516 to assist in the purchase of
three police vehicles.

of TennesseeState
State
State
State
State
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Schedule of Funding Progress

June 30, 2012

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS’ PENSION PLAN

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued UML as a

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (ML) ML Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Plan Assets -Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

July, 1 2011 $2,156 $2,264 $108 95.22% $1186 9.13%
July, I 2009 $1,735 $1,959 $225 88.54% $927 24.23%
July 1, 2007 $1,671 $1,915 $244 87.26% $1,000 24.40%

See independent auditor’s report.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal Grantor!
Pass-Through Grantor

FEDERAL AWARDS:

Federal Emergency Management Agency

ARRA - Department of Economic and
Community Devclopment

TN Housing Development Agency

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

STATE AWARDS:

TN Technology Grant

TN Law Enforcement Grant

Volunteer Fire Assistant Grant

TOTAL STATE AWARDS

TOTAL FEDERAL AND
STATE AWARDS

580

5,000

2,940

8,520

97.044

81.128

Balance Balance
CPDA Julyl,2011 JuneSO,2012

Number Contract Number Receivable Unexpended Receipts Expenditures Receivable Unexpended

N/A HM-09-34

EMW-2010-FO-01218 $ - $ 7,105 $ 11,615 $ 18,720 S

CG-1133176 27,400 - 27.400 -

- - 61,931 -

27,400 7.105 80,651 -

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

____________ _____________ 61,931

______________ _______________ 100,946

580

- - 5,000

- - 2,940

- - 8,520

$ 27,400 $ 7,105 $ 109,466 $ 89,171 S - S -

See independent auditor’s report.
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LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Deferred revenue

Restricted:
Due to other funds
Funds held in trust

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2012

Total
Drug Nonmajor

Sanitation State Street Enforcement Governmental
Fund Aid Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS

Accounts receivable:
Due from customers
Due from other funds

Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable -

Due from governmental units

Total assets

$ - $ - $ 20,465
- - 3,062

32,706 37,486 70192

14,871 - 14,871

$ 20,465
3,062

$ 23,527 $ 47,577
____________ $ 37,486

$ 10,904 $ - $

- - 420
- - 804

10,904 - 1,224

- 47,577 36,262
12,623 - -

12,623 47,577 36,262

$ 23,527 $ 47,577 $ 37,486

$ 108,590

$ 10,904

420
804

12,128

83,839
~ 12,623

96,462

$ 108,590

See independent auditor’s report.



TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011)

Sanitation Fund State Sweet Aid Fund Dma Enforcement Fund Total NonmajcrGovemmnntal Funds

Total revenuen 121.000 121,000 120.408 88,402 83,781 89,588 - 42,214 41.934 59.179 121,000 163,214 246,123 237,169

Expenditures.
Personntl senvices
Employee education and training
Per diem
conhaclual senvicen
Vehicle tow-in services
Pninting
Memberships and regi,hntionn
Public relations
Auction fees
Electric
Repair services
Vaccinations nod dnsg testing
Supplies
Small items of equipment
clothing and uniforms
Repair — motor vehicle
Metal products
concrete and cnished stone
Asptial land asphalt filler
Spednl investigative funds
Cnpittt outlay

7,500 -

500 110
200 -

122,500 129,220
3,500 1,835
1,200 296

100
4,000 2,237
1,684 1,447

48,600 42,656
3,060 7,237

12,300 9,392
12,100 6,848
2,500 2,271
6,000 -

1,500 252
3,500 458

47,500 5,858
— 7,000

26,019 15,313

Renenues oven (under)
esptnditnnet (8,187) (35,259) (116,500) (118,500) 8,115 (135,1461 (22,549) f22,549) 13,765 (I 578) (141.049) (141,049) 13.693 (171,983)

Olhnrfinandng sources (usns)’,
Tmnsters (to) from general fund 11.916 36,309 - - - 70,000 - - - - . - 11,916 106,309

Total othnr finandng
sources (uses) - - 11,916 36,309 70.000 - - - - - - 11,916 106,309

Rnvenuen and other tnandng
sources over (under)
en,pnnditunns and other
firnndng uses - - 3,729 1,050 (118,500) (118,500)

2012 2012
Originni Final
Budget Budget

Rtvenuen:
Intergovemmettal mnenue:

State gas and motor fuel tax
Fines and fortleits
Intereit lncomn
Donations
changnn for service
Misceltnnecus

2012 2011
AclusI Actual

- $ - $ - $

2012 2012
Original Final
Budget Budget

121,000 121,000

2012 2011
Actual Actual

120,408 88,402

2012 2012
Original Final
Budget Budget

- $ - $ - $ 83,762 $ 89,55’ $

19 3;

2012 2012
2012 2011 Original Final 2012 2011

Actual Actual Budget Budgel ActusI Actual

- - - - 20,712 20,712 1,000

• $ - S - $ -

- 16,128 17,843 52,471
- 17 22 13
- 3,357 3,357 5,695

- S - $ 83,762
- 18,125 17,843

17 41
- 3,357 3,357

121,000 121,000 120,405
- 20,712 20,712

89,551
52,471

SB
5,695

55,402
1,000

Total espendituren

- - - - - - - - 500 7,500 - - 500
- - - - - - - 500 500 110 382 500

- - - - - - - 200 200 - - 200
121,000 121,000 128,595 123,661 - - - - 1,500 “ 1,500 625 6,748 122,500

- - - - - - - - 2,500 3,500 1,835 1,605 2,500
- - - - - 200 1.200 296 - 200
- - . - . - — - 100 100 - 630 100
- - - . - - 4,000 2,237 1,357 -

- - - - - - - 450 1,684 1,447 2,150 450
- - - - 48,600 48,600 42,656 47,730 - - 48,600
- - - 3,000 3,000 7,177 1,300 - 60 60 - 3,000
- - - - - - - - - - • 74 -

- - - - 7,300 7,300 3,952 6,085 5,000 5,000 5,440 3,911 12,300
- . - - 1,100 1,100 - - 6,000 11,000 6,848 13,988 7,100
- - - - - - - - - 2,500 2,271 72
- - - - 6,000 B_Boo - - - - 6,000
- - - — 1,500 1,500 252 1,214 ‘ - - - 1,500
- - - - 3,500 3,500 458 1,297 - - - - 3,500
- - • - 47,500 47,500 5,858 167,108 - - - - 47,500

- . . - - - 7,000 1,280 -

• - 15,313 - 5,555 26,019 - 28,500 5,599

121,000 121,000 128,595 123,661 118,500 118,500 75,666 224,734 22,549 64,763 28,189 60,757 ____________

382

130,409
1,665

630
1,357
2,150

47,730
1300

74
9,996

13,988 -

72

1,214
1,297

167,106
1,280

28,500

Fund balance, beginning 8,894 5,894 8,894 7.844

262,049 304,203 232,430 405.152

8,115 (65.146) (22,549) (22,549)

Fund balanca, ending $ 6.894 5 5,894 $ 12,623 S 8,594 $ (79.038) S (79,038t $ 47,577 $ 39,462 $ (52) S (52) 5 36,262 $ 22,497 5 (70,1961 S (70,198) 5 96,462 5 70.853

39,462 39,462 39.462 104,608 22,467 22,467 22.497 24,075 70,653 70,653 70,653 136,527

13,765 (1,578) (141,049) (141,049) 25,609 (65,674)

See independent auditor’s report.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Schedule of Long-Term Principal and Interest Requirements by Issue
Governmental Activities

June 30, 2012

Fiscal William & Connie Sharp
Year Town Hall Loan Total

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 $ 30,000 $ - $ 30,000 $ -

2014 30,000 - 30,000 -

2015 30000 - 30,000 -

2016 30,000 - 30,000 -

2017 30,000 - 30,000 -

2018 30,000 - 30,000 -

2019 30,000 - 30,000 -

2020 30,000 - 30,000 -

2021 20,000 20,000

$ 260,000 $ - $ 260,000 $ -

See independent auditor’s report.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Schedule of Long-Term Principal and Interest Requirements by Issue
Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2012

1978 1995 2004
Fiscal Water Revenue Wastewater Facility Water and Sewer Revenue 2008
Year and Tax Bonds Revolving Loan and Tax Bonds ODBG Loan Total

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 $ 8,000 $ 2,450 $ 147,744 $ 16,476 $ 4,315 $ 11,333 $ 22,781 $ 1,859 $ 182,840 $ 32,118
2014 8,000 2.050 152,700 11,520 4,506 11,140 23,454 947 188,662 25,657
2015 9,000 1,625 157,812 6,408 4,709 10,939 171,521 18,972
2016 9,000 1,175 61,685 1.345 4,920 10.728 75,605 13,248
2017 9,000 725 5.139 10,509 14,139 11,234
2018 10.000 250 5,369 10,279 15,369 10,529
2019 5,608 10,040 5,608 10,040
2020 5,859 9,789 5,859 9.789
2021 6.120 9,528 6,120 9,528
2022 6,393 9,255 6,393 9,255
2023 6.679 8,969 6,679 8,969
2024 6,977 8,671 6,977 8,671
2025 7,288 8,360 7,288 8,360
2026 7,613 8,035 7,613 8,035
2027 7,953 7,695 7.953 7.695
2028 8,308 7,340 8,308 7.340
2029 8,679 6,969 8,679 6,969
2030 9,067 6,581 9,067 6,581
2031 9,471 6,177 9,471 6,177
2032 9,894 5,754 9,894 5,754
2033 10.336 5,312 10.336 5,312
2034 10.797 4.851 10,797 4,851
2035 11,279 4,369 11,279 4,369
2036 11,783 3,865 11,783 3,865
2037 12,309 3,339 12,309 3,339
2038 12,858 2,790 12,858 2,790
2039 13,432 2,216 13,432 2.216
2040 14,032 1,616 14,032 1,616
2041 14,658 990 14,658 990
2042 14,636 326 14,636 326

$ 53,000 $ 8,275 $ 519,941 $ 35,749 $ 260,989 $ 207.765 $ 46.235 $ 2,806 $ 880.165 $ 254,595

See independent auditors report.



TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Schedule of Utility Plant, Property and Equipment, and Accumulated Depreciation

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Utility Plant, Property and Equipment Accumulated Depreciation

Balance Retirements and Balance Balance Balance Net Book
Water and Sewer Fund June 30. 2011 Additions Reclassifications June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 Additions Retirements June 30, 2012 value

classified plant in service:
Land and land rights $ 43,545 $ - $ - $ 43,545 $ - $ - $ - - $ 43,545
Source of supply land 6,000 - - 6,000 - - - - 6,000
Source ofsupplystructures 621,288 10,144 - 631,432 497,373 15,659 - 513,032 118,400
Electricpumping equipment 115.934 - - 115,934 51,931 3,864 - 55,795 60,139
Purification system 26101 - - 26,101 16,795 653 - 17,448 8,653
Transmission mains 956,953 - - 956.953 794,911 23,924 - 818,835 138,118
Distribution mains 1,745,235 - - 1,745,235 741,370 43,631 - 785,001 960,234
Services 33,857 - - 33,857 33,857 - - 33.857 -

Meters 574,423 - - 574,423 83.887 57,442 - 141.329 433.094
Hydrants 49,954 - - 49,954 33,866 1,249 - 35,115 14,839
Meter reading equipment 37,768 - - 37,768 19,309 4,536 - 23,845 13,923
Tools and work equipment 284.300 - - 284,300 284,300 - - 284,300 -

Sewer plant and lift stations 4,831,561 - - 4,831,561 1,684,903 96,631 - 1,781,534 3,050,027
Pipelines and accessories 3,217,591 - - 3,217,591 1,659.970 64.352 - 1.724,322 1,493,269
Boosterstations 590,850 - - 590,850 102,179 14,771 - 116,950 473,900
Machinery and equipment:

Office furniture and equipment 7.593 - - 7,593 7,593 - - 7,593 -

Vehicles:
Transportation equipment 99,702 - - 99.702 99,702 - - 99,702

Total classified plant in service 13,242,655 10,144 - 13,252,799 6,111,946 326,712 - 6.438,658 6,814,141

Unclassified plant in service 57.729 - - 57,729 57,729 - - 57,729 -

Total plant in service 13,300384 10,144 - 13,310,528 6,169,675 326,712 - 6,496,387 6,814,141

Construction in process - - -

Total plant $ 13,300.384 $ 10,144 $ - $ 13,310,528 $ 6,169,675 $ 326,712 $ - $ 6,496,387 $ 6,814,141

See independent auditor’s report.



64

Tax Year July 1,2011

TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Abatements

2011 $
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

$ 404,587

$ 72,060 $ 404,587

$ (245) $ (372,421)
(14,907)

(4,096)
(1,651)

(678)
(235) (134)
(611)

13
(52) (392)

$ (394,279)

(421)

$ (1714)

$ 31,921
18756
6,879
5,292
4,366
4,868
3,056
2,149
2,625

742

80,654

January 1,2012
until October 1,2012

property tax assessment not to be billed
405,000

$ 485,654

Balance Current and
Assessment Adjustments

Balance
Collections June 30, 2012

33,663
10,975
6,974
5,176
5,237
3,667
2,136
3,069

742
421

(31)
(132)

See independent auditor’s report.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Schedule of Insurance in Force and Bonds of Principal Officials

June 30, 2012

Blanket coverage on buildings and personal property $12033164

Inland marine equipment:
Equipment floater 233461

Workers compensation Statutory

Liability agreement:
General accident/auto liability:

Per person Statutory
Per occurrence Statutory
Per occurrence for property damage Statutory

Employee dishonesty bond 150000

See independent auditor’s report.



TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Analysis of Tax Rates and Assessments

June 30, 2012

Total Outstanding
Collections Delinquent

as a Outstanding Taxes Filed
Fiscal Assessed Tax Rate Total Total Tax Percent of Delinquent in Chancery
Year Value Per $100 Tax Levy Collections Total Levy Taxes Court

2002 $ 30277,154 $ 125 $ 390615 $ 389,873 99.8% $ 742 $ 742
2003 29,671,513 1.25 393,790 391,165 99.3% 2,625 3,069
2004 29,108,332 1.25 385,613 383,464 99.4% 2,149 2,136
2005 36,623,254 1.03 397,644 393,977 99.1% 3,056 3,667
2006 39,838,993 1.02 406,344 401,107 98.7% 4,868 5,237
2007 39,518,332 1.02 403,258 398,082 98.7% 4,366 5,176
2008 39,729,780 1.02 405,723 398,749 98.3% 5,292 6,974
2009 40,116,972 1.02 409,202 398,227 97.3% 6,879 6,879
2010 48,813,067 0.83 * 406,000 372,337 91.7% 18,756 -

2011 48,707,572 0.83 * 404,342 372,421 92.1% 31,921 -

*Morgan County portion of Town is $0.90 Per $100

Source: Town’s Management

See independent auditor’s report.
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Utility Rate Structure and Number of Customers

June 30, 2012

WATER RATES

Inside Outside
Town Town

First 2,000 gallons (minimum) $7.50 $14.00~
All over 2,000 gallons (per thousand) 4.10 7.00
Surcharge 4.00

SEWER RATES

First 2,000 gallons (minimum) $15.00 $28.75
All over 2,000 gallons (per thousand) 6.25 12.31

All sewer only customers pay $30.00.

TAP FEES

Inside Outside
Town Town

3/4”watermeterbase $1,000 $1,200
1” water meter base 1,500 1,625

> 2” water meter base $1,000 + Cost of labor, $2,000 + Cost of labor,
material and meter material and meter

All sized sewer taps $1,000 $1,100

GARBAGE RATES

Residential $7.00
Commercial $9.50 + $2.50 per additional can

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

Water 2,114
Sewer 1,382
Garbage 1,429

Notes

1. Multi-dwelling minimum charges are to be calculated as number of units times minimum charge.

See independent auditor’s report.



OTHER STATISTICAL SCHEDULES (Unaudited)



Water Audit Report for: Town of Oliver Springs

Reporting Year:

All volumes to be entered as: MILLION GALLONS (US) PER YEAR

WATER SUPPLIED

Volume from own sources: 5 311.792 Million gallons (US)/yr (MG/Yr)

Master meter error adjustment (enter positive value): 3 3.110

Water imported: 5 1.553 MG/Yr

Water exported: 5 70.204 MG/Yr

WATER SUPPLIED: 246.251 MG/Yr
.

AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION
Billed metered: 10 93.757 MG/Yr

Billed unmetered: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr

Unbilled metered: 8 5.160 MG/Yr Pcnt: Value:

Unbilled unmetered: 3.078 MG/Yr 1.25%

AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 101.995 MG/Yr

WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 144.256 MG/Yr

Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:

Unauthorized consumption: 0.616 MG/Yr 0.25%

Customer metering inaccuracies: 9 1.506 MG/Yr 1.50%

Systematic data handling errors: 10 2.040 MG/Yr

Apparent Losses: 4.162  

Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)

Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 140.094 MG/Yr

WATER LOSSES: 144.256 MG/Yr

NON-REVENUE WATER

NON-REVENUE WATER: 152.494 MG/Yr

= Total Water Loss + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered

SYSTEM DATA

Length of mains: 5 56.0 miles

Number of active AND inactive service connections: 9 2,015

Connection density: 36 conn./mile main

Average length of customer service line: 9 0.0 ft

Average operating pressure: 7 75.0 psi

COST DATA

Total annual cost of operating water system: 10 $796,763 $/Year

Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 10 $9.32
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 9 $259.01 $/Million gallons

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial Indicators

Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 61.9%

Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 9.7%

Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $38,790

Annual cost of Real Losses: $36,286

Operational Efficiency Indicators

Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 5.66 gallons/connection/day

Real Losses per service connection per day*: 190.48 gallons/connection/day

Real Losses per length of main per day*: N/A

Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: 2.54 gallons/connection/day/psi

Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): 16.57 million gallons/year

From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 140.09 million gallons/year

8.46

* only the most applicable of these two indicators will be calculated

 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:

 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:

     1: Volume from own sources

     2: Master meter error adjustment

     3: Water imported

 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:

*** YOUR SCORE IS: 69 out of 100 ***

Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:

    Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed     

A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score

 AWWA WLCC Free Water Audit Software: Reporting Worksheet

2012

under-registered

7/2011 - 6/2012

<< Enter grading in column 'E'

MG/Yr

$/1000 gallons (US)

       Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed

Choose this option to 
enter a percentage of 

billed metered 
consumption. This is 
NOT a default value

?

?

?

?

?

? Click to access definition

?

?

?

?

?

?

Back to Instructions

Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of 
the input data by grading each component (1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

(pipe length between curbstop and customer 
meter or property boundary)

Use buttons to select
percentage of water supplied

OR
value

?Click here: 
for help using option 
buttons below

For more information, click here to see the Grading Matrix worksheet

?

Copyright © 2010, American Water Works Association. All Rights Reserved.

?

?

?

?

 WAS v4.2

AWWA Water Loss Control Committee Reporting Worksheet      1
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

Miscellaneous Statistical Data

June 30, 2012

Incorporated 1905
Form of government Mayor - Aldermen
Adopted Home Rule Charter N/A
Area in square miles 4.3

Police protection:
Number of stations 1
Number of full-time employees 14

Fire protection:
Number of stations 2
Number of volunteers 18

Total number of public safety employees (full-time) 14

Recreation:
Parks (acres) 28
Playgrounds 1

Municipal water plant:
Average daily consumption in gallons 289,156
Maximum storage capacity in gallons 1,100,000

Paved streets (per lane mile) 133
Water lines (miles) 112
Sanitary sewer (miles) 50

Source: Town’s Management

See independent auditor’s report.
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BROWN JAKE & McDANIEL, PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2607 KINGSTON PIKE, SUITE 110
KNOXVILLE, TENNESSEE 37919-3336

865/637-8600 • fax: 865/637-8601

JOE L. BROWN, CPA, CGFM, COMA
FRANK D. McDANIEL, CPA, CGFM, COMA MEMBERS
TERRY L. MOATS, CPA, CGFM, COMA AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
JAMES S. BOOHER, CPA, COMA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAHERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mayor and Board of Aldermen
Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee (the
Town) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town of Oliver Springs,
Tennessee’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 25, 2013. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
Town’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control overfinancial reporting
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. However, of the significant
deficiencies described below, we consider items #12-1 through #12-8, to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider items #12-1 to #12-8 described below to be significant deficiencies.

DDD
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Operating Deficiencies

Purchasing and Cash Disbursements

Finding #12-1: During our testing of disbursements, we noted the following:

• Several instances in which purchases were not quoted or competitively bid when required.
• Several instances where there were no purchase orders.
• Several instances of purchase orders not being signed for approval.

These findings were reported in prior years.

Recommendation: We recommend that purchase orders be completed for all required purchases, quotes or
competitive bidding be requested on all required purchases, invoices always be present when making
payments, and proper support be obtained for all purchases. These findings were noted in the prior year.

Management’s Response: This matter has been changed effective July 1,2012. We will continue to strive to
correct this issue. We are now obtaining competitive bids when possible. All purchase orders are being
signed and a preprinted numbered purchase order is being used. Approving signatures are also being
provided.

Finding #12-2: During our audit, we noted the Town’s fuel cards were not being used properly. The Town
paid for fuel expense from statements without reconciling individual receipts to the statements. Individual fuel
receipts are not always being submitted. Odometer readings for Town vehicles were not sequential and there
were numerous instances of both diesel and unleaded gasoline being purchased for the same vehicle. We
also noted instances of multiple fill ups on one vehicle in the same day. This finding was reported in the prior
year.

Recommendation: We recommend proper control be maintained over all purchasing and credit cards. We
recommend cards be issued by vehicle, not by employee. The system controls only function if cards are
assigned and used on a vehicle basis. Also, procedures should be reviewed with employees so that control
features of the cards are not compromised because employees fail to use them properly.

Management’s Response: We concur. Because we have a limited work force, and employees are forced to
do multiple tasks, it is not uncommon for an employee to operate more than one vehicle or piece of equipment
during the day. Therefore, it is conceivable that an employee may fill up a truck and a dump truck, or a tractor
during the same day with the same fuel card. To reduce our exposure to risk, we stopped issuing cards to
each vehicle or piece of equipment, and instead issue them to the employee. We feel that this provides for
more individual accountability. We will, however, remind the employees about the necessity of turning in
receipts and documentation for all fuel purchases.

Travel

Finding #12-3: During our testing of disbursements, we noted two instances of insufficient travel
documentation. There is no explanation for the travel and itemized receipts are not always being turned in
with reimbursement request. These findings were reported in the prior years.

Recommendation: We recommend that proper documentation for all travel and meals be retained and
purpose of the travel be fully documented.

Management’s Response: We concur.
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Segregation of Duties

Finding #12-4: The Town employees are responsible for billing, collecting, depositing and recording Town
collections. This finding was reported in prior years.

Recommendation: We recommend the Board review employee responsibilities to ensure that no employee
has control over a complete transaction.

Management’s Response: We concur. We will continue to segregate duties the best we can, taking in to
consideration our very small staff.

Journal Entries

Finding #12-5: During our audit, we noted management approval is not required for journal entries. This
finding was reported in prior years.

Recommendation: We recommend all journal entries be approved by management.

Management’s Response: We concur. Management will approve all journal entries.

Water Line Loss

Finding #12-6: During our audit, we noted that line loss for the Water and Sewer Department is excessive.
This finding was reported in the prior year.

Recommendation: We recommend the Board develop a plan to lower water line loss.

Management’s Response: This matter is now being tracked more effectively. We have developed forms for
water usage for fire, streets, water and sewer for such items as flushing, flow testing, etc. The forms are to be
completed and turned into City HalliWater Clerk within 48 hours of usage. This will allow the means of
tracking and reducing our percentage of unaccounted for water usage.

Adjusting Journal Entries

Finding #12-7: During our audit, we had to make significant adjustments to various asset and liability accounts
of the Town so the Town’s financial statements would conform to generally accepted accounting principles.
This finding was reported in prior years.

Recommendation: Management should evaluate the cost and benefits of employing personnel with the
technical expertise to detect and correct significant misstatements of asset and liability accounts so the
financial statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles.

Management’s Response: We concur. We will strive to make these improvements should the necessary
funding become available.

Financial Statement Presentation

Finding #12-8: The Town does not employ personnel that have the technical expertise to prepare the annual
financial reports in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This finding was reported in
prior years.

Recommendation: The Town should evaluate the cost and benefits of employing personnel with the technical
expertise to prepare the annual financial reports in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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Management’s Response: We concur. The Town of Oliver Springs will continue to contract the preparation of
our annual financial report out to our auditors and will retain the responsibility of reviewing and accepting the
financial report.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards, and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as items #12-9 to #12—12.

Drug Fund

Finding #12-9: During our audit, we noted that drug investigation activity logs and reports of confidential funds
requested are not being properly completed and there is not proper paperwork for all cash advances. There
are no fuel receipts when officer is purchasing gas with drug investigation money. It appears that flash money
is not being returned to the Town within 48 hours of being taken out as required. Due to the paperwork not
being properly dated and completed, there is no way to tell when the moneywas returned. We also noted that
the “Receipt for Payment to Informant” form is being filled out and signed by the officer, not the informant, and
there is no witness signing the form.

Recommendation: We recommend the State of Tennessee Drug Fund Manual be followed for all drug related
activity and that all drug investigation reports be properly completed.

Management’s Response: We concur.

Budget Compliance

Finding #12-10: During our audit, we noted that the Town overexpended the General Fund and the Sanitation
Fund appropriations. This is a violation of state law. This was reported in the prior year.

Recommendation: We recommend that all expenditures be reviewed for proper appropriation prior to
disbursement. The Mayor and Board of Aldermen should pass a formal budget amendment before excess
expenditures are made. Also, budgeting deficits is not prudent financial management.

Management’s Response: We concur. We will periodically review the budgets and make budget
amendments as necessary.

Dumping and Sewage Barter Transaction

Finding #12-11: The Town has an unwritten agreement with a contractor to provide sewage pumping services
and port-a-toilets to the Town in exchange for the rights to dump raw sewage into the Town’s sewer system.
The contractor has keys to an outlying pump station and is dumping unsupervised. No Town personnel are
validating the quantities or contents being dumped into the system. Also, the Town did not issue a 1 099B for
this transaction as required by the Internal Revenue Service.

Recommendation: The Board should establish a sewage dump policy and rates. We recommend the Town
stop bartering and pay for services the contractor renders. The Town should bill all contractors for sewage
dumped in the Town’s sewer system. The Town should supervise all contractors that dump and validate the
quantities and test the contents. Also, when a barter transaction is entered into, the Town should issue a
1099B.



74

Management’s Response: This matter is being addressed, and we are developing a system to track all
amounts dumped or any barter that takes place.

Deficit Fund Balance

Finding #12-12: During our audit, we noted that the water and sewer fund operated in a deficit position. This
is the second straight year of deficit operation. According to TCA Section 68-13-1010, the water and sewer
system is to be operated in a sound financial position.

Recommendation: We recommend that operating expenses and anticipated growth be reviewed to determine
what steps are necessary to operate the water and sewer system in a sound financial position.

Management’s Response: This matter will be addressed with our next fiscal budget. We will be looking at a
rate increase to allow for improvements to our operations, upkeep and maintenance of our water and sewer
system and improve our overall fund standing.

The Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described
above. We did not audit the Town of Oliver Springs, Tennessee’s responses and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen,
others within the entity, the State of Tennessee, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

February 25, 2013
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TOWN OF OLIVER SPRINGS, TENNESSEE

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

All significant deficiencies from the June 30, 2011 Accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs,
except for the items referenced in the current year Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were not noted during the performance of the
current year audit.
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